
 

 

Notice of Meeting 
 
Health and Wellbeing Board 
Councillor Catherine Del Campo (Cabinet Member with responsibility for Adult 
Services and Health) (Chair) 
Huw Thomas (Clinical Lead RBWM NHS Frimley ICB) (Vice-Chair) 
Kevin McDaniel (Executive Director of Adult Services and Health) 
Tracy Hendren (Head of Housing, Environmental Health and Trading 
Standards) 
Jonas Thompson-McCormick (Deputy Director of Public Health) 
Tessa Lindfield (Director of Public Health for Berkshire East) 
Tess Scott (Healthwatch East Berkshire) 
Councillor Joshua Reynolds 
Councillor Simon Werner 
Councillor Helen Taylor (Chair of People Overview and Scrutiny Panel) 
 
Tuesday 11 July 2023 3.00 pm 
Virtual Meeting - Online access & on RBWM YouTube 
 

 

Agenda 
 

Item Description Page   
Apologies for Absence 
 

 
- 1 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
 

  
Declarations of Interest 
 

 

2 To receive any declarations of interest. 
 

3 – 4 
  

Minutes 
 

 

3 
To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 4th April 2023. 
 

5 – 10 
  

Children and Young People’s Strategic Plan for RBWM 
 

 

4 
To understand the priorities and principles of the plan and how these will be 
delivered by the council. 
  
Reporting officer: Pauline Peters – Senior Transformation Lead, Children and 
Young People 
 

Verbal 
Report 

 

 
LGA support offer for Health and Wellbeing Boards 
 

 

5 
To hear of the support which the Local Government Association can provide 
the Health and Wellbeing Board going forward. 
  
Reporting officers: Caitlin Corley – Local Government Association 
Claire Lowman – Service Lead, Public Health 
 

Verbal 
Report 

 

 
Housing 
 

 

6 To consider the briefing note which provides an update on the housing 
services across RBWM. 
 

To Follow 
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/user/WindsorMaidenhead


 
 

 

Reporting officer: Alex Szantai – Housing Operations Manager 
  
Better Care Fund 
 

 

7 
To receive an update on the Better Care Fund. 
 
Reporting officer: Prince Obike – Integrated Care Transformation Senior 
Manager 
 

Verbal 
Report 

 

 
Future Meeting Dates 
 

- 

8 
         Tuesday 10th October 2023 

 
 

 
 
 
By attending this meeting, participants are consenting to the audio & visual 
recording being permitted and acknowledge that this shall remain 
accessible in the public domain permanently. 
 
Please contact Mark Beeley, 01628 796345 / mark.beeley@rbwm.gov.uk, 
with any special requests that you may have when attending this meeting. 
 
Published: 3rd July 2023  
 



Revised October 2022 

 

MEMBERS’ GUIDE TO DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 

Disclosure at Meetings 

If a Member has not disclosed an interest in their Register of Interests, they must make the declaration 
of interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as they are aware that they have a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest (DPI) or Other Registerable Interest. If a Member has already disclosed the interest 
in their Register of Interests they are still required to disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter 
being discussed. 

Any Member with concerns about the nature of their interest should consult the Monitoring Officer in 
advance of the meeting.  

Non-participation in case of Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your DPIs (summary below, 
further details set out in Table 1 of the Members’ Code of Conduct) you must disclose the interest, 
not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room 
unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’ (as agreed in advance by 
the Monitoring Officer), you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an 
interest. Dispensation may be granted by the Monitoring Officer in limited circumstances, to enable 
you to participate and vote on a matter in which you have a DPI. 

Where you have a DPI on a matter to be considered or is being considered by you as a Cabinet 
Member in exercise of your executive function, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest 
and must not take any steps or further steps in the matter apart from arranging for someone else to 
deal with it. 

DPIs (relating to the Member or their partner) include: 

• Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

• Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the council) made to the 
councillor during the previous 12-month period for expenses incurred by him/her in carrying out 
his/her duties as a councillor, or towards his/her election expenses 

• Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed which has 
not been fully discharged. 

• Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the council. 

• Any licence to occupy land in the area of the council for a month or longer. 

• Any tenancy where the landlord is the council, and the tenant is a body in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest in the securities of. 

• Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where: 
a) that body has a place of business or land in the area of the council, and 
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the 
total issued share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal value of the shares of any one class 
belonging to the relevant person exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
class. 

Any Member who is unsure if their interest falls within any of the above legal definitions should seek 
advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting.  

Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Other Registerable 
Interests (summary below and as set out in Table 2 of the Members Code of Conduct), you must 
disclose the interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also 
allowed to speak at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on 
the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it 
is a ‘sensitive interest’ (as agreed in advance by the Monitoring Officer), you do not have to 
disclose the nature of the interest. 

3

Agenda Item 2



Revised October 2022 

 

Other Registerable Interests: 

a) any unpaid directorships  

b) any body of which you are a member or are in a position of general control or management 

and to which you are nominated or appointed by your authority  

c) any body  

(i) exercising functions of a public nature  

(ii) directed to charitable purposes or  

(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including 

any political party or trade union)  

 of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management 

Disclosure of Non- Registerable Interests 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or well-being (and is 
not a DPI) or a financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate, or a body included under 
Other Registerable Interests in Table 2 you must disclose the interest. You may speak on the matter 
only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but otherwise must not 
take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you 

have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’ (agreed in advance by the Monitoring 
Officer) you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects – 

a. your own financial interest or well-being; 

b. a financial interest or well-being of a friend, relative, close associate; or 

c. a financial interest or well-being of a body included under Other Registerable 
Interests as set out in Table 2 (as set out above and in the Members’ code of 
Conduct) 

you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can remain in the meeting after 

disclosing your interest the following test should be applied. 

Where a matter (referred to in the paragraph above) affects the financial interest or well-being: 

a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of 

inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and; 

b. a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it 

would affect your view of the wider public interest 

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the 
meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must 
not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive 
interest’ (agreed in advance by the Monitoring Officer, you do not have to disclose the nature of 
the interest. 

Other declarations 

Members may wish to declare at the beginning of the meeting any other information they feel should 

be in the public domain in relation to an item on the agenda; such Member statements will be included 

in the minutes for transparency. 

4



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

Tuesday 4 April 2023 
 
Present virtually: Councillor Stuart Carroll (Chairman), Councillor David Coppinger, 
Councillor Donna Stimson, Councillor Sayonara Luxton, Kevin McDaniel, Tracy 
Hendren, Anna Richards, Steve Dunn and Joanna Dixon 
 
Also in attendance virtually: Councillor Maureen Hunt and Councillor Simon Bond 
 
Officers in attendance virtually: Mark Beeley, Lin Ferguson, Jesal Dhokia, Marc 
Connor, Tom Addey and Tessa Lindfield 
 
 
Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies for absence had been received from Alex Tilley, Huw Thomas and Tess Scott. 
Joanna Dixon was attending as substitute for Tess Scott. 
  
The Chairman informed the Board that he would need to join another meeting at 3.30pm, it 
was proposed that Councillor Coppinger would be Chairman for the remainder of the meeting. 
 
Declarations of Interest 
 
The Chairman declared a personal interest as he worked for the vaccine company Moderna. 
Councillor Carroll declared this personal interest in the spirit of openness and full 
transparency. 
 
Minutes and Actions 
 
RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the minutes of the meeting held on 24th January 2023 
were approved as a true and accurate record. 
  
Steve Dunn, RBWM Place Convenor at NHS Frimley, said that the Home First scheme, which 
had been discussed at the last meeting, had gone from strength to strength and had a made a 
massive difference to residents. He commended the team on the excellent work which had 
taken place. 
 
Housing Update 
 
RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: Due to a technical issue, the order of agenda items was 
changed so that the first item considered was the update on Housing. 
  
Tracy Hendren, Head of Housing, Environmental Health and Trading Standards, introduced 
the item and said that there were currently 640 cases in the homelessness service. This was 
still significantly higher than pre-Covid levels and high staff turnover had impacted on the 
resource capacity of the team. RBWM had recently successful bid for an allocation of the 
Local Authority Housing Fund from the government which would provide additional homes in 
the borough, the funding was around £3 million. There were currently 222 households in 
temporary accommodation, of which 120 were being housed outside of the borough. The first 
draft plans had been prepared for the refurbishment of John West House, this would allow the 
council to have a fully supported accommodation based pathway for those on the rough 
sleeper pathway. A report on the project was due to be considered by Cabinet at the end of 
the month, after which works would begin. A private sector liaison officer had been recruited, 
who would work on reducing temporary accommodation while also supporting the 95 

5

Agenda Item 3



households that were part of the Homes for Ukraine scheme. Payments to host families had 
been increased from £350 to £500, while the government increase had started from 1st April. 
An appointment had also been made to a Berkshire wide rough sleeper initiative coordinator, 
which would allow for a joined-up approach across the six authorities. This post had been 
funded from the government. 
  
The Chairman asked how the team had been communicating the project on John West 
House. 
  
Tracy Hendren explained that currently the building was used for limited accommodation 
options without any support. The building would be refurbished to allow for an additional 16 
units while there would be room to provide internal and external medical advice, care and 
support on site. 
 
Priority Focus - Championing Mental Wellbeing and Reducing Social Isolation 
 
Anna Richards, Head of Public Health, introduced the main theme for the meeting. There were 
four priority areas in the Health and Wellbeing Strategy, with the one being considered at the 
meeting being championing good mental health and reducing social isolation. 
  
Marc Connor, Public Health Intelligence and Strategy Officer, outlined the governance 
structure for the Berkshire East Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA). The steering group 
had been established and met on six weekly intervals. RBWM was no longer compared within 
the Berkshire East context, comparisons were now made with the least deprived upper tier 
authorities, for example Surrey and Bracknell Forest. Lower-Layer Super Output Areas 
(LSOA) were a standard statistical geography produced by the Office for National Statistics for 
the reporting of small area statistics. There were 7 domains considered with an average of 
1,500 residents, so the areas were small in size and population. RBWM was compromised of 
89 LSOAs and sat within the most affluent decile. However, there were areas of deprivation 
within the borough. The population was growing and becoming older, there had been increase 
in 6% since the last census. Considering mental health, 0.7% of people living in RBWM were 
recorded as having a serious mental health issue, this equated to around 1,200 adults. 9% or 
15,000 adults had recorded having depression with their GP. The suicide rate in males was 
higher, both nationally and locally. However, there was comparatively lower emergency 
admission rates for intentional self-harm. Marc Connor updated the Board with progress on 
the mental health topic pack. Data was being collated with input from the Integrated Care 
Board, data would include information on referrals, waiting lists and the number of services 
users. Work would be done to explore the gaps, duplications and consider the next steps and 
recommendations which could be made. 
  
Councillor Carroll had to leave the meeting due to another commitment. Mark Beeley, 
Principal Democratic Services Officer – Overview and Scrutiny, asked for nominations for 
Chairman for the remainder of the meeting. 
  
Councillor Stimson proposed that Councillor Coppinger was Chairman for the remainder of the 
meeting, this was seconded by Kevin McDaniel. 
  
RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That Councillor Coppinger was elected as Chairman for 
the remainder of the meeting. 
  
Councillor Coppinger said that he was always surprised that there were areas of deprivation in 
a fairly affluent borough. He asked if the level of deprivation had got worse or better over time. 
  
Marc Connor said that compared to other areas, there could be improvements but overall the 
areas of deprivation in the borough remained the same. 
  

6



Tessa Lindfield said that the gap between deprived and affluent areas was increasing 
nationally which was a concerning trend. The JSNA had made significant progress, she asked 
if there were any ideas on how to use the information which had come out of the JSNA. 
  
Kevin McDaniel, Executive Director of Adults Services and Health, felt that there was an 
opportunity to work with colleagues on mental health, considering what could be done directly 
and through community outreach. 
  
Anna Richards agreed that it was important that the data was used, as part of the JSNA focus 
had been on 0-19 age group. This had been used to form the children’s and young people 
strategic partnership plan. She encouraged residents to visit the JSNA website and explore 
the data for themselves. 
  
Tom Addey, Public Heath Registrar, updated the Board on the work which had been taking 
place to tackle loneliness. Loneliness was damaging for residents health and increased the 
use of public services. It was estimated to increase an individual’s risk of premature mortality 
by 26%, which was comparable to obesity or smoking. Reducing social isolation and 
loneliness were key priorities in the RBWM Health and Wellbeing Strategy and the Corporate 
Plan. In the residents survey, 12% of adults said that they were lonely often, always or some 
of the time. This was approximately 15,000 people. It was important to note that social 
isolation was an objective measure of the number of contacts that people had, looking at the 
quantity of relationships. Loneliness was subjective, an unwelcome feeling of lack of loss of 
companionship. This occurred when there was a mismatch between the quantity and quality of 
social relationships a person had and those that they desired. There was a stigma associated 
with feeling lonely which prevented some people from reaching out for support. There was no 
single solution for tackling the issue but there were a number of programmes which helped to 
alleviate loneliness. 
  
Jesal Dhokia, Partnerships and Community Service Lead, outlined how the council was 
working with the community to tackle loneliness. The council was looking to take an asset 
based community development approach to supporting partners to take leadership and action 
on loneliness. A working group had been established to being together statutory, voluntary 
and community organisations to build on the existing assets in the community and develop 
solutions for residents. The group had four themes: 
  

         Identifying and engaging with people experiencing loneliness. 
         Promoting assets that built social connections and addressing barriers to access. 
         Building volunteer networks and community connectors. 
         Understanding the role of professionals in tackling loneliness. 

  
The council would support organisations to develop and deliver sustainable solutions to these 
challenges. Community assets would be mapped and promoted to make it easier for residents 
to be aware of what was available. A shared understanding would look to be developed on the 
impact of loneliness and build a culture that encouraged strong social relationships. It was the 
start of this piece of work which was utilising officer time, along with the support of community 
and voluntary groups in the community. 
  
Councillor Stimson was responsible for climate and biodiversity but she understood that these 
targets were not achievable without health and wellbeing. People had a need to belong, she 
was aware of a government scheme proposal where older people could be paid to work part 
time for a voluntary organisation. 
  
Councillor Luxton commented on the world cafes, which had been run in each ward across the 
borough. She suggested that a world café for the whole borough could be considered to bring 
ideas together. 
  

7



Jesal Dhokia explained that the world cafes had been run based on the response to the 
Embedding Community Response project. There would be an event held in the summer 
celebrating all of the work done with the voluntary sector across the borough. 
  
Kevin McDaniel felt that one of the key impacts of the ward world cafes was that issues were 
explored that were prominent only in that area and were therefore carefully considered. 
  
Anna Richards commented on professionals understanding social isolation. She asked how 
professionals in different organisations were talking about and de-stigmatising social isolation 
to improve wellbeing. 
  
Jesal Dhokia said that a skills based programme in collaboration with partners would be run 
over the summer. Skills of professionals would be utilised to tackle social isolation. 
  
Tom Addey said that a range of professionals were part of the working group, this helped to 
make them aware of the huge number of community services available. 
  
Steve Dunn felt that the world cafes had been a big success, feedback had been shared with 
practices and meetings across the local healthcare system. He referenced the ‘Just One 
Thing’ BBC podcast which discussed actionable changes that the public could make in their 
lives. 
  
Anna Richards added that the podcast allowed people to make small changes that could 
improve their own health and wellbeing. She suggested that this could be incorporated into the 
working group with the voluntary sector, to make more people aware. 
 
Better Care Fund Update 
 
Kevin McDaniel explained that the Better Care Fund (BCF) Plan for 2022/23 had been 
approved by NHS England and the Section 75 agreement had now been signed. The Hospital 
Discharge Grant was added into the BCF in December 2022. The local authority funding had 
been fully spent on the Home First model and 14 block beds in a nursing home. Planning for 
2023/24 was expected from NHS England, local planning for next had almost been completed. 
The total BCF for 2022/23 was just over £15 million which included the reserve from last year, 
it was anticipated that there would no reserve carried forward to next year. One advantage of 
the BCF allocation had been remote monitoring, as part of the Home First model, which had 
helped to ensure that residents did not slip back into needing hospital admission. 
  
Steve Dunn commented on a personal experience with the Home First model, where his mum 
had required hospital treatment after breaking her hip. The support provided would help to 
make her as independent as she was before her fall, showing the effectiveness of the 
scheme. 
 
Future Meetings Dates 
 
The Board noted that the next meeting would take place on Tuesday 11th July. 
  
Councillor Coppinger announced that as he would not be standing for re-election, this would 
be his last Health and Wellbeing Board. He thanked all Board Members for their work and 
support over his time as a Councillor. 
  
Kevin McDaniel said that it had been a pleasure to work with Councillor Coppinger, particularly 
as Cabinet Member for Adult Services. 
  
Councillor Stimson thanked Councillor Coppinger for everything he had done for health and 
wellbeing in the borough. 
  

8



Tessa Lindfield shared that Anna Richards would be moving on from RBWM before the next 
Board meeting. She thanked Anna for all her work and contributions on behalf of the public 
health team. 
  
Steve Dunn informed the Board that the upcoming Easter weekend was followed by a four day 
junior doctor strike. Work had been done with partners to ensure that there was sufficient 
primary care and pharmacy provision in place throughout this time. 
  
Councillor Luxton asked if there was an update on the Sunningdale Health Hub. 
  
Steve Dunn explained that the team were working the project through with the Department for 
Health, it was hoped that there would be an update in time for the next meeting of the Board. 
 
 
The meeting, which began at 3.00 pm, finished at 4.20 pm 
 

Chair.……………………………………. 
 

Date……………………………….......... 
 

9



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes



